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Darlene R. Barber
Superintendent
E-mail; dharber@cumberiand.tec.nius

Its ;g;_gghoi?ce!

November- 16,2011

Honorable President and _

Members of the Board of Education

Cumberland County Board of Vocational Education
Cumberland County, New Jersey

Dear Roard Members:

The comprehensive annual financial report of the Cumberland County Technical Education School District for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2011, is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the aceuracy of the data and completeness and
fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management of the Cumberland County Board of
Vocational Education. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the data presented in this report ks accurate in all material
respects and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the various
funds and account groups of the District, All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the
Disirict’s financial agtivities have been included.

The comprehensive annual financial 1eport is presented in four sections: mtroductory, financial; statistical and single audit.
The introductory section ineludes this transmittal letter, the District’s organizational chart and a list of principal officials.
The financial section includés the general purpose financial statemerits and schedules, as well as the auditor's report
thereon. The statistical section includes selected financial and demographic information, generally presented on-a mult-
year bagis. The District {s tequired to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit
Avct Revisions of 1996 and the U.8. Office of Manageinent and Budget Ciroular A-133, "Audits of State, Local
Governinents and Nen-profit Organizations”, and the state Treasury Circular Letter 04-04 OMB, “Single Audit Policy for
Reeipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid Payments™. Information related to this single-audit, including the
auditor’s report.on the intérnal contiol structure and compliance with acceptable laws and regulations and findings and
recaiiimendations are included in the single audit seétion of this report.

1) REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES: Cumberland County Technical Education School District is a
component of Cumbertand County within the criteria adopted by GASB as established by GASB Statement No, 14, All
funds and account groups of'the District are included in this report. The Cumberland County Board of Vocational
Education and all its schools constitute the District’s reporting entity.

The district plimau!y provides vocational technical cateer training for secondary and adult students within the comty and
secks to acliieve a competency level whereby students, upon completion of their program, will be adequately trained to
enter the work force or go oii to further education. The district also provides a speclai edugation program for student with
moderate cognitive disabilities (STRIVE) and provides occupational programs in 6 arcas for learning disabled students.
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CCTEC Enrollment History
YEAR Bridgeton CRHS Miltville Vineland Other HSTOT | Adult | Total
FT ST FT 8T FT | ST FT | ST |STRIVE| other
00-01 13 40 16 60 24 105 10 166 2 i 441 207 | 648
01-02 | 9 38 11 73 15 101 g 213 18 4 489 2471 730 ¢
003 || 7 49 7 88 10 | 84 2 | 265 3 | 18 531 | 226 | 767
0304 11 50 7 80 13 80 4 260 1 13 518 197 715
04-06 10 68 7 89 12 100 4 286 2 14 557 76 | 768
05-06 13 33 8 95 1 136 3 275 14 585 200 | 785 .
|oe-07 5 54 8 107 17 109 | 2 297 9 608 | 198 | 808
07-08 5 68 7 70 5 a6 6 24z 9 13 521 244 | 785
08-09 5. ) 46 .8 77 8 Q7 6 192 9 7 429 {95 | 624
09:10 7 73 5 105 8 126 7 235 9 8 546 340 | 886 |
1044 g 71 6 129 8 140 5 290 ) 7 674 | 201 | 965 |
. ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK: With the past two year's devastating economic turndown,
Cumbsrland County was hit with massive unemployment and nnderemployed workers. The blight economic
conditions reinained throughout the past school year with Cumberland County seeing the highest
unemplayment rate in the State of New Jersey. There was much anticipation and hope when Piesident Barack
Obamn, along with legislative support, passed the unprecedented American Reinvestment and Recovery Act.
A major part of the plan is refnvestment in.the American worker through refraining. The Disteict served ita
highest number of postsecondary students seeking training and retraining.
Unemployment contifites to have a positive impact on CCTEC postsecondary enrollment. When
wnemployment is infavorable, itote peopls tend to seek technical training and re-fraining. We continue fo see:
high enrollment in all Allied Health Programs including LPN, Dental and Certified Nurses® Aides.
The State of New Jersey mads a decision to cut state aid resulting in the depletion of the distriots veserve
funds. This will have amajer impact on the futare of the educational institution,
The Cumberland County Beard of Vocational Education continues to support of a full time high schoul
‘program option. The district participated in the Freeholder appointed Blue Ribbon Committee to put forth a
plan for the future for a full time high schodl. The plan is expected to be completed in December, 2010,
3. MAJOR INITIATIVES: CCTEC embarked on a number of educational and other initiatives during thie

fiscal year.

a, The District cut its administration by nearly $250,000 eliminating both the Assistant Superintendent and
Public Relations positions.

b. The District worked with Cumberland County College to enhance career pathways for all students,

¢. The District participated in the Technical Centers That Work, through a statewide initiative, to raise the
rigor and relevance of academics in career and technical programs.

d. The District continued to raise the level of applied math and science integrated into its cateer and

technical programs.

The District:continues to sponsor the Apprenticeship Coordinator and School to Work program,

High Placement Rates and Test Scores: As in past years, CCTEC’s career training programs are

validated by job placement of our graduates. Several programs boasted 100% placement last year,

g Guaranteed Graduates: Every Cumberland TEC student who graduates and passes a proficiency test
leaves their program with guaranteed skills. The guaratitee is good for two years after graduation. Qur
stadents continue to perform well on state and national skills test given by industry experfs. A majority
of CCTEC programs exceed the state average in these competency tests.

h. Qur LPN program: continues to produce highly skilled, 100%% empleoyable nurses, For this reason the
program mumbers were incieased to 60 students. There is high demand for LPNs in the industry. Qur staff
wotked - ¢ojunction with Cumberland County College to develop Dual Credit Courses in the Health
Services field.
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The District provided technical training for the New Jersey Laborer’s Union in weathetization and green

teehnology.

j.  The District continves to work with the Department of Environtiental Protection fo iinprove and
remiediate the water condition at Curberland County Technical Education Center.

k. The District continued its work with the Cumberland County Cooperative working as LEA providing
shared service projects such as county-wide special education transportation, school bus driver traiiring
and the newly formed scheol nurses program.

1. The District took advantage of additional REAP grant funds and afforded teachers the opportunity to take
advantage of nore professional development activities fn their field.

in. The District offered half day, as well as full day, teacher in serviee prograins specific to instituting matli
and séience initiative to incividual program curricula, A summer two week teacher camp assisted staff in
technology and problem based learning,

n, The STRIVE program continued with an extended year program, On the job training is a big part of the

program affording students with disabilities the oppertunity to gain valuable life learning work related

skills,

4) INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS: Managenrent of the District is responsible for establishing and

5)

G}

7

‘maintaining an internal control steuctire designed to ensure that the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft or
Hisuge and to-ensune that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow Tor the preparation of financial statements in

conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The internal control structure fs designed to provide
reasoniable, but not absolute, asswance that these objectives are met. The coneept of reasonable assurance recognizes
that: (1) the cost of a contrel should not exeeed the bensfits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and
benefits requires estimate-and judgments by management.

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the District also is responsible for ensuring that an adequate
internal contral shricture is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations related to those
progeams, ‘This infernal control structure is alzo subject to periodic evaluation by the District management.

As part of the District’s single audit deseribed earlier, tests are made to determine the adequacy of the interrial conirol
strueture, including that portion related to federal and state financial assistance programs, as well as to-defermine that
the District has complied with applicable laws and regulations.

BUDGETARY CONTROLS: In addition to internal accounting controls, the District maintains budgetary controls.
‘The objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual
appropriated budget approved by the Curberland Coumty Board of School Estimate. Annual appropriated budgets are
adopted for the general fund and the special revenue fund. Project-length budgets are approved forthe capital
improvements accounted for in the capital projects fund. The final budget amount as amendexd for the fiscal year is
reflected in the financial section.

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitmerts on 4 line item basis. Open
encumbrances at year-end are either cancelled or are included as re-appropriations of fund balance in the subsequent
year. Those amounts to be re-appropriated are reported as reservations of fund balance at June 30, 2011.

ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS: The District’s accounting records reflect generally accepted
accounting principles, as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The accounting
system of the District is organized on the basis of funds and account groups, These funds and account groups are
explained in “Notes to the Financial Statements”, Note 1.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION AT FISCAL YEAR END: As demonstrated by the varlous statements and
schedules included in the financial section of this report, the District continnes to meet its responsibility for sound
financial management, The folowing schedule presents a summary of the general fund and special revénue fimd
revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 and the amount and percentage of increases in rélation to prior year
revenues.

Increase Percent of
Percent of {Decrease) Therease
Revenug Amount Total from 2010 {Decriase)
Local Sources $4,275,589 A8.78% $ 400,318 10.,33%
State Sources 4,124,662 47.08% 1,258,837 43.93%
Federal Sourdes 03,032 4.14% (802,596)

Total £8.763.303 -100.00% 3856559




The followitig schedule presents a summary of gerieral fund and special revenue fund expenditures for the fiscal year-ended
June 30,2011 and the percentage of increases and decreases. in refation to puior year amounts.

Increase Peroent of
Percent (Decrease) Increase
Expenditures Amount of Total from 2010 (Decrease)
Current Expense:
Instruction $2,179,623 26.43% $(328,748) (13.110)%
Undistributed
Expenditures 4,333,066 52.55% {63,518} (1.44)%
Capital Outlay 461,295 5.59% 98,693 27.22%
Special Schools: 1,271,913 13:43% (140,080} (3.9 %
Total $8.245.897 —100.00% 3 (433,653) e 0028

"8) DEBT ADMINISTRATION: All bond indebtedness on behalf of the District is hield by thie Cuinbeiland County
Board of Chosen Frecholders.

9) CASH MANAGEMENT: The investment policy of the District is gnided in large part by state statute as detailed in
“Notes to the Financial Statements”, Note 2. The District has adopted a cash managenent plan which requires it to
deposit public funds in public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit
Protection Act (*GUDPA”). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect Governmental Units from a loss.of funds on
deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey. The law requires govermmental imits to deposit public funds
only in public depositories Tocated in New Jersey, where the funds are secured in accordance with the Act.

10) RISK MANAGEMENT: The Board carries various forms of insurance, ineluding but not imited to general liability,
aytomobile lability and comprehensive/collision, hazard and theft insurance on property and contents, and fidefity
bonds,

11) OTHER INFORMATION:

A} Independent Audit — State statutes requite an annual audit by independent cetified public accountants or registered
municipal accountants. The accounting firm of Triantos & Delp, CPA’s LLC was selected by the Board. In addition
o meeting lequuements set forth in state statutes, the audit also was also designed to. meet the requirements of the
Single Audit Act Revisions of 1996 and the refated OMB Circular A-128 and state Treasury Circular Letter 04-04
OMB, The auditor’s répoit on the general puipose financial statemeqis and combining aund individual fund
statements and schiedules is fucluded in fhe financial section of this report, The audifor’s reports relafed specifically
to the single audit ai'é included in the single audit section of this veport,

12) ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

We would like to express oui appreciation to the members of the Cumberland County Board of Vocational Education
for their coiicetn in providing fiscal accountability to the citizens and taxpayers of the school district and thereby
contributing thieir full support to the development and maintenance of our financial operation. The preparation of this
repott could not have been accomplished without the efficient and dedicated services of our finaneial and accounting
staff.

Respectfully submitted,

Datlene R, Barber ¥4 Gene Mereoli
Supetintendent Business Administrator/Board Secretary
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Thinking ahead to
achieve success. INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education

Cumberland County Board of Vocational Education School District
County of Cumberland, New Jersey

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Board of Education of
the Cumberland County Board of Vocational Education School District in the County of Cumberland,
State of New Jersey, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the
District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Cumberland County Board of Vocational Education’s management. Qur
responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and audit requirements as prescribed by the
Division of Finance and Regulatory Compliance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporiing the amounts and disclosures in the {inancial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and sigpificant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation, We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the Cumberland County Board of Vocational Education in
the County of Cumberland, State of New Jersey, as of June 30, 2011, and the respective changes in
financial position and cash flows, where applicable, for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issned our report dated November 16,
2011 on our consideration of the Cumberland County Board of Vocational Education’s internal conirol
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and
not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should
be considered in assessing the resuits of our audit.

The Management Discussion and Analysis and Budgetary Comparison Information on pages 30 through
41 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain
Iimited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of
measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the
information and express no opinion on it.
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Triantos & Delp

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS, LLC

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Continued)

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statemenis that collectively
comprise the Cumberland County Board of Vocational Education’s basic financial statements. The
accompanying introductory section and other supplementary information, such as the combining and
individual fund financial statements, long-term debt schedules and statistical tables are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The
combining and individual fund financial statements and long-term debt schedules have been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are
fairly stated, in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The
intreductory section and statistical tables have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and New Jersey
OMB’s Circular (4-04, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, Statc Grants and State Aid,
respectively, and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our
opinion, is fairly stated in afl material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a
whole.

Respectfully submitted,

Samuel A. Delp, Jr.
Public School Accountant, #745

Triantos & Delp
Certified Public Accountanis, LL.C

November 16, 2011
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Darlene R. Barber
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It's your choice!
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This section of Cumberland County Board of Vocational Education's (CCBOVE) annual financial report presents our
discussion and analysis of the District's financial performance during the fiscal year that ended on June 30, 2011, Please
read it in conjunction with the transmittal letter at the front of this report and the District's financial statements, which
immediately follow this section,

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual report consists of three parts - management's discussion and analysis (this section), the basic financial
statements, and required supplementary information. The basic financial statements include two kinds of statements that
present different views of the district.

- The first two statements are disirict-wide financial statements that provide both short-term and
long-term information about the District's overall financial status.

- The remaining statements are finrd financial statements that focus on individual parts of the
District, reporting the District's operations in more detail than the district-wide statements.

- The governmental funds statements tell how basic services like regular and special education
were financed in the short term as well as what remains for future spending.

- Proprietary funds statements offer short and Jong-ferm financial information about the
activities of the district operates [like businesses.

- Fiduciary funds statements provide information about the financial relationships in which the
District acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of others.

The financial statements also include mofes that explain some of the information in the statements and provide more

detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of required supplementary information that further explains and
supports the financial statements with a comparison of the District's budget for the year,

6041 Bridgeton Avenue * Bridgeton, New Jersey 08302 * Voice: 856.451.9000 * Fax: 856.451.8487




Figure A-1
Major Features of District-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

District-Wide
Statements
Entire disfrict
(except fiduciary
funds)

Scope

Required  -Statement of

financial net assets

statements -Statement of
activities

Accounting  Accrual
basisand  accounting and
measurement economic

focus resources focus
Type of All assets and
asset/ liabilities both
liability financial and
Information capital, short-
term and long
term
Typeof  All revenues
inflow/ and expenses
outflow  during the year,
information regardless of
when cash is

received or paid

Furd Financial Statements

Governmental Funds

the activities of the district
that are nof propriefary or
fiduciary, such as special
education and building
maintenance

-Balance sheet
-Statement of revenues
expenditures, and
changes in fund balances

Modified Accrual
accounting and current
financiaf resources focus

Generally assets expected
to be used up and liabilities
that come due during the
year or soon thereafter; no
capifal assets or long-term
liabilities inctuded

Revenues for which cash is
received during or soon after
the end of the year
expenditures when goods ar
services have been received
and the related liability is
due and payabie

Proprietary Funds
Activities the district

operates similar to private
businesses: food services
and adult education

-Statement of net assets

-Statement of revenues,
expenses, and changes
in fund net assets
-Statement of cash flows

Accrual accounting and
economic resources focus

Al assets and liabilities
both financial and capital
and short-term and
long-term

All revenues and expenses
during the year, regardless
of when cash is received or
paid

Fiduciary Funds
Instances in which the

district administers
resources on behalf of
someone else, such as
scholarship programs and
student activities monies

-Statement of fiduciary
net assets

-Statement of changes
in fiduciary net assets

Accrual accounting and
economic resources focus

All assets and liabilities

both short-term and

long-term; CCBOVE's funds do
not currently contain capital
assets, although they can

All additions and deductions
during the year, regardiess
of when cash is received or
paid

Figure A-I summarizes the major features of the District's financial statements, including the portion of the District's
activities they cover and the type of information they contain. The remainder of this overview section of management's
discussion and analysis highlights the structure and contents of each of the statements.

District-wide Statements

The district-wide statements report information about the District as a whole using accounting methods similar to those
used by private-sector companies., The statement of net assets includes all of the District's assets and liabilities. All of the
cuttent year's revenues and expenses are accounted for in the statement of activities regardless of when cash is received or

paid.

The two district-wide statements report the District's net assets and how they have changed. Net assets - the difference
between the District's assets and liabilities - are one way to measure the District's financial health or position.

- Over time, increases or decreases in the Disirict's net assets are an indicator of whether its
financial position is improving or deteriorating, respectively.

- To assess the overall health of the District, you need to consider additional non-financial
factors such as changes in the Disirict's property tax base and the condition of school
building and other facilities.

In the district-wide financial statements, the District's activities are divided into two categories:

- Governmental activities - Most of the District's basic services are included here, such as regular
and special education, transportation, and administration, Property taxes and state formula aid
finance most of these activities.

- Business-type activities - The District charges fees to help it cover the cost for certain services it provides. The
District's food services program is included here.




Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the District's firnds, focusing on its most significant
or "major” funds - not the District as a whole. Funds are accounting devices the District uses to keep track of specific
sources of funding and spending on particular programs:

- Some funds are required by State Law and by bond covenants.

- The District establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular purposes (like
completing approved capital projects) or to show that it is properly using certain revenues (like
federal grants).

The District has three kinds of funds:

- Governmental Fund - Most of the District's basic services are included in governmental funds,
which generally focus on (1} how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted
to cash flow in and out and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available for spending,
Consequently, the governmental funds statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps
you determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near
future to finance the District's programs, Because this information does not encompass the
additional long-term focus of the district-wide statements, we provide additional information
with the governmental funds statements that explains the relationship (or differences between
them,

Proprietary funds - Services for which the District charges a fee are generally reported in

proprietary funds, Proprietary funds are reported in the same way as the district-wide
statetnents.

- In fact, the Districl's enferprise funds (one type of proprietary fund) are the same as its
business-type activities, but provide more detail and additional information, such as cash
flow.

- Internal service funds (the other kind of proprietary fund) are utilized to report activities that
provide supplies and services for the District's other programs and activities and for other
Districts (student transportation).

Fiduciary funds - The District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for assets that belong to others, such

as the scholarship fund and the student activities funds. The District is responsible for ensuring
that the assets reported in these funds are used only for their intended purposes and by those to
whom the assets belong. We exclude these activities from the district-wide financial statements
because the District cannot use these assets to finance its operations.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE (in thousands)

Net assets. The District's combined net assets are $6,508 on June 30, 2011. Approximately 1% of the total net assets are
from business-type activities. The balance of the total net assets, which is approximately 99%, are attributed to
governmental activities.

Changes in net assets. The District's total revenues are $16,000 for the fiscal period ending June 30, 2011. Property taxes
and state formula aid accounted for 40% of the District's revenue. 3% is derived from state and federal aid for specific
programs, and the remainder, 57% from fees charged for services and miscellaneous resources.

The District's expenses are predominantly related to educating and caring for students 22%. The purely administrative
activities of the District accounted for 9% of total costs. Salary increases due to contractual agreements for teachers and
other educational staff are included in the instruction-related costs. Total revenues surpassed expenses, increasing net
assets approximately $1,858 over last year, primarily in governmental type activities.

Governmental Activities

Revenues for the District's governmental activities amounted to $15,952. Total expenses amounted to $14,111. The
increase in net assets in governmental activities was $1,841 for 2011.




Business-Type Activities

Revenues of the District's business-type activities amounted to $48 and expenses were $31. Factors confributing to these
results included:

* The District netted a small profit from a customized training program.
* The school’s catering function also realized a small profit.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT'S FUNDS (in thousands)

The strong financial performance of the District as & whole is primarily reflected in its governmental funds. As the district
completed the year, its governmental funds reported combined balances of $3,658. Miscellaneous revenue and non-resident
fees exceeded the amounts anticipated in the 2011 budget. The District charged tuition for secondary high school students.
Anticipated secondary tuition revenue exceeded that of the budgeted amount. The District also controlled expenditures.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Over the course of the year, the District revised the annual operating budget several times. These budget amendments were
for the following purpose:

* Transfers between budgetary line accounts to prevent overrums.
* To utilize unexpended funds for other purposes.

The District's final budget anticipated utilizing $983 in fund balance and $93 of prior year encumbrances to fund the
appropriation plan for this fiscal period. The general fund balance increased by $736.

With decreased funding, the district had only hoped to maintain our already excellent programs while striving to increase
our high school enrcllment. Both of these were achieved.

Actmal expenditures for capital outlay amounted to $85 in the Operating Fund. The balance of expenditures for capital
outlay in the amount of $89 was from the Special Revenue Fund and $287 from the Capital Project Fund.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION (in thousands)

Capital Assets

By the end of 2011, the District had invested 6.7 million in a broad range of capital assets, including school buildings,
athletic facilities, computer and audiovisual equipment, and administrative offices. (more detailed information about capital
assets can be found in Note 5 to the financial statements.) Total depreciation expense for the year was $243 while building
improvements and additions to equipment and furniture amounted to $459.

The District purchased it’s first 54 passenger school bus in many years. This will allow the school to save funding on the
cost of transportation field trips. The Board of Education authorized ufilizing unexpended appropriation lines for the
replacement of the Culinary Freezing and renovation of the Cosmetology Room and Gymnasium, All scheduled to be
replaced by Sept. 2011.

CCTEC has begun work on a grant project approved by the NJ DOE for the renovation and replacement of the school’s
HVAC systems, flat roofing areas and all exteriors doors. The contract has been awarded and work has begun in June of
2011. Additionally the County has allocated bonding for the replacement of the school district’s well system and potable
water components. This project has also been awarded and will be moving forward in the Summer of 2011.

Long-Term Debt

The District does not have the authority to issue bonds. Any long-term debt is approved and issued by the County of
Cumberland and is not a liability of the District.




FACTORS BEARING ON THE DISTRICT’S FUTURE

At the time these financial statements were prepared and audited, the District was aware of the following existing
circumstances that could significantly affect its financial health in the future:

¢ The State of New Jersey, through Governor Chris Christie adjusted the District’s 2009-2010 state aid resulting in a
loss of $1,106,712. The district reduced its forces by twelve people in order to help offset the loss in aid.

¢  Miscellaneous district revenue, including post-secondary tuition, is unpredictable. Historically, when local
indusiry lays off workers, employmeni-related funding agencies have additional monies to allocate for retraining
programs and we receive more students — and the tuition income they generate. This year was no exception. The
district received a considerable amount of adult funding through workforce development and other agencies

¢ The State of New Jersey, as well as the entire country, continues to be is in the midst of a recession. With large
corporate failures and government bailouts becoming the norm, we must be ever cognizant of tax revenues and un-
warranted expenditures. The Cumberland County Board of Vocational Education must continue position itself to
be able to sustain high quality programming while weathering a very difficult financial future,

¢ The District constantly monitor’s industry’s needs to ensure our technical programs produce a job-ready
workforce. In conjunction with the Workforce Investment Board and Cumberland County College, the
Cumberland County Board of Vocational Education will work with the five top growing business and industry
fields in Cumberland County. It is important the District recognizes the future needs and plans accordingly in
those specific areas of economic development and develops career pathways to both college and the workforce.

¢ Tt is evident the District continues to grow with a record high secondary and adult enrollment for the second year
in a row. The District continues to grow out of its current facility and future expansion, with or without a full-time
secondary program, will be necessary.

e Several projects ate in progress including a new potable water system upgrade, re-roofing, HVAC units and door
replacements will had a bearing on the District’s financial health.

+ It is anticipated any accumulated surplus as of June 30 2012 will be used to evaluate and institute new career and
technical programs as recommended by the administration.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors with a general
overview of the District’s finances and to demonstrate the District’s accountability for the fimding it receives. If you have
questions about this report or need additional financial information, please contact Gene Mercoli, School Business
Administrator, Cumberland County Board of Vocaticnal Education, 601 Bridgeton Ave., Bridgeton, NJ 08302.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




DISTRICT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




CUMBERLAND COUNTY BOARD OF VOCATIONAL EDUCATION
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2011

Governmental Business-Type

EXHIBIT A-1

Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,665,682, $ 15,542, $ 1,681,224,
Receivables, net 2,592 .809. 22 459 2,615,268.
Note receivable 30,000. 30,000.
Inventory 85,884, 85,884.
Total Current Assets 4,258,491, 153,885. 4,412 376.
Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted Assets:
Capital reserve account - ¢cash 325,911. 325,911.
Capital assets, net 2,569,769. 2,569,769,
Total noncurrent assets 2,895 680. 0. 2,895,680.
Total Assets 7,154, 171. 153,885, 7,308,056.
LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable 596,477. 7,405, 603,882,
Interfund payable (68,182.) 68,182.
Payable to federal government 628. 628.
Deferred revenue 16,641. 16,641,
Current portion of long-term liabilities 33,075. 33,075.
Total Current Liabilities 578,639. 75,587, 654,226,
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Accrued compensated absences 145 393. 145, 393.
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 145,393. 0. 145,393,
Total Liabilities 724,032 75,5687. 799,619,
NET ASSETS:
Investment in capital assets, net of related debt 2,569,769. 2,569,769.
Restricted for:
Capital projects 1,573,648. 1,673,648.
Qther purposes 1,940,454, 1,940,454,
Unrestricted 346,268. 78,298. 424 5686,
Total Net Assets $ 6,430,130, $ 78,298. $ 6,508,437,

See Accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS




CUMBERLAND COUNTY BOARD OF VOCATIONAL EDUCATION

EXHIBIT B-1

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2011
Special Capitat Debt Total
General Revenue Projects Service Permanent  Governmental
Fund Fund ~ Fund Fund Fund Funds
Assets:
Cash and cash eqguivalents $ 1,960,924, $(307,019.) $(77,675.) $ $ $ 1,576,230.
Due from other funds 250,536. 250,536.
Receivables from other governments 95,620, 351,250, 202,285. 649,155,
Other 1,332,445, 1,332,445,
Capital reserve 128,473, 125 473
Total assets $ 2,436,553, $44,231.  $ 1,457,055, $0. $0. §$39373839
Liabilities and Fund Balances:
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 23,874 $ 31,285, $12,267. $ $ $ 67426,
Interfund payable 197,051. 197,051,
Payable to federal government 628.. 628.
Deferred revenue 2,000. 12,318. 14,318.
Total liabilities 25.874. 44,231, 209,318. 0. 0. 279,423.
Fund Balances:
Restricted for:
Excess surplus-current year 953,322, 953,322,
Excess surplus-designated for
subsequent year's expenditures 33,850. 33,859
Maintenance reserve 143,900. 143,900.
Capital reserve 325,911. 325,911.
Committed to:
QOther purposes 809,373. 809,373.
Assigned to;
Designated by BOE for subsequent
year's expenditures 75,000. 75.000.
Capital projects 1,247,737 1,247,737,
Unassigned:
General fund 69,314. 69,314.
Total fund balances 2.410,679. 0. 4,247 737. 0. 0. 3,658,416.
Total liabiities and fund balances $ 2,436,553, $44,231. §1,457,055. $0. 50

Amounts reported for government activities in the statement of
net assets (A-1) are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and therefore are not reported in the funds. The cost of the assets is
$7,169,932. and the accumulated depreciation is $4,611,501. {See Note 5) $ 2,558,431,

L.ong-term liabilities, inciuding bonds payable, are not due and payable
in the current period and therefore are not reported as liabilities in the funds.

(See Note 7)
Internal service fund net assels

Net assets of governmental activities

See Accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

(171,833
385,125,

$6,430,139.




CUMBERLAND COUNTY BOARD OF VOCATIONAL EDUCATION

STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES iN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

REVENUES:
Local sources:

Local tax tevy
Tuition charges
Non-resident fees
Interest earned
Misceilaneous-restricted
Miscellaneous-unsestricted

Total local sources

State sources
Federal sources

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Vocational instruction
Cther instruction

Support services:
Student & instruction related services
School administrative services
Other administrative services
Central services
Admin info technology
Plant operations and maintenance
Pupil transportation
Employee benefits

Special schools

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess {deficiency) of revenues over exp.
OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES):
Prior year adjustment

Bond proceeds

Transfersfcancellations

Total other financing sources {uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balance - July 1
Fund balance - June 30

EXHIBIT B-2

Special Capital Debt Total
General Revenue Projects Service Permanent Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
$ 2,100,000. L] 5 3 5 $ 2,100,000.
1,007,999. 1,007,999,
45,600. 45 600.
32,485, 32,495.
1,051,401. 1,051,401.
38,094, 38,004,
4,275,589, 0. 0. 0. 0. 4,275,589.
3,998,257. 126,405. 202,285. 4,326,947,
363,052 363,052,
8,273,846, 489,457, 202 285. 0. 0. 8,965,588,
1,908,083. 254, 411. 2,162,504,
17.119. 17,119.
553,638. 96,075. 649,713.
345,563, 345,563.
440,971, 440,971,
314,138. 314,138.
151,884, 151,884.
872,237. 872,237,
23,058. 23,058.
1,485,564, 49,938. 1,535,502.
1,271,913, 1,271,913.
85,260. 89,033. 286,993, 461,295,
7,469 447 489,457, 286,993. 0. Q. 8,245,897,
804,399, (84,708.) 719,681,
(26,398.) {26,398.)
1,332,445. 1,332,445,
(268,000.} (265,000.)
(26,398.) 0. 1,067,445. 0. 0. 1,041,047.
778,001. 982,737. 1,760,738.
1,632,678. 265,000. 1,897,678.
$2,410,679. $0. $1,247,737. $0. $0. $3,658416.

See Accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements




CUMBERLAND COUNTY BOARD OF VOCATIONAL EDUCATION
RECONCILATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Total net changes in fund balances - governmental funds (from B-2)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (A-2)
are different because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation
expense. _
This is the amount by which capital outfays exceeded depreciation in the period.
Depreciation expense
Capital outlays

Adjustment to fixed asset carrying value (Note 5)

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces
long-term fabilities in the statement of net assets and is not reported in the statement of activities.

Proceeds from debt issues are a financing source in the governmental funds. They are not revenue
in the statement of activities; issuing debt increases long-term labilities in the statement of net assets.

In the statement of activities, ceriain operating expenses, e.g., compensated absences (vacations) are
measured by the amounts eamed during the year. In the governmentat funds, however, expenditures
for these items are reported in the amount of financial resources used {paid). When the earmned amount
excesds the paid amount, the difference is reduction in the reconciliation (-); when the paid amount
exceeds the earned amount the difference is an addition to the reconcitiation (+).

Increase in net assets - internal service fund

Change in net assets of governmental acfivities

See Accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Staternents

EXHIBIT B-3

$ 1,760,738.

$(242,819.)

459,485, 216,676.

(133,221))

(9,723}
6,623,

$ 1,841,093,




PROPRIETARY FUNDS




EXHIBIT B4

CUMBERLAND COUNTY BOARD OF VOCATIONAL EDUCATION

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2011
Governmental
Activities -
Internal
Totals Service Fund
ASSETS:
Current Assets:
- Cash and cash equivaients $ 15,642 $ 285,890.
Accounts receivable:
interfund 21,444, 27,858,
Other receivables 1,015, 597.498.
Other assets 550.
inventory 85,884.
Note receivable-City of Bridgeton 30,000.
Total current assets 153,885, 911,796.
Noncurrent assets:
Fumniture, machinery & equipment 65,780.
Less accumulated depreciation (54,442.)
Total noncurrent assets 0. 11,338,
Total assets $ 153,885. $ 923,134,
LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $7.405. $ 466,367,
Refund to participants 58,257.
Deferred revenue 2,323.
Interfund payable 68,182
Prepaid benefits 4,427.
Total current liabilties 75,587. 531,374,
Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences 6,635.
Total noncurrent liabiities 0. 6,635.
Total liabilities 75,587. 538,009.
NET ASSETS:
Invested in capital assets net of
related debt 11,338.
Unrestricted 78,298. 373,787.
Total net assets $ 78,298, $ 385,125,

See Accompanying Notes fo the Basic Financial Statements




EXHIBIT B-5

CUMBERLAND COUNTY BOARD OF VOCATIONAL EDUCATION

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2011

Governmental
Activities -
Internal
Totals Service Fund
Operating revenues:
Charges for services:
Daily sales $ 31,598, $
Fees 6,078,614,
Total operating revenues 31,508. 6,078,614,
Operating expenses:
Cost of sales 29,395,
Salaries 191,900,
Payroll taxes and fringe benefits 69,547,
Other purchased services 39,122.
Contracied services 5,687,700.
General supplies 16,573.
Refunds to participating districts 58,257,
Miscellaneous 1,153. 1,335.
Depreciation 7,557,
Total operating expenses 30,548. 6,071,991,
Operating income/(loss) 1,050. 6,623.
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
State sources:
State school lunch program 244
Federal sources:
National school breakfast program 5,055.
Nationat school lunch program 10,617.
Interest 21,
Total nonoperating revenues {expenses) 15,937. 0.
Change in net assets 16,987. 6,623.
Tatal net assets - beginning 61,311. 378,502,
Total net assels - ending $78,298. $ 385,125,

See Accompanying Notes {o the Financial Statements




EXHIBIT B-6

CUMBERLAND COUNTY BOARD OF VOCATIONAL EDUCATION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Governmental
Activities -
Total Internal
Enterprise Service Fund
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACT. '
Receipts from customers $77,286. $ 6,000,881.
Payments to employees {191,900.)
Payments for employee benefits (69,753.)
Payments o suppliers (41,438.) (6,010,817.)
Net cash provided by (used for} oper act 35,848, (262,589.)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACT.
State sources 244,
Federal sources 15,672.
Interest 21.
Net cash provided by/(used for) non-capital fin act 15,937, 0.
Net increase {dec¢rease} in cash and cash equiv 51,785. (262,589.)
Balances-beginning of year (36,243.) 548,479.
Balances-end of year $ 15,542, $ 285 890.

Reconciliation of operating income (10ss)
to net cash provided {used) by operating activities:
Operating income (loss) $ 1,050 $6,623.
Adjust to reconcile operating income
(loss) to net cash provided by (used for) oper act:

Depreciation and net amortization 7,657.
{Increase)/decrease in accts receivable, net 47 147. (1092,391.)
{Increase)/decrease in interfund receivables (1,540.) 50,638.
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (17,878.)
increase/(decrease) in prepaid benefits 62.
Increase/{(decrease) in accounts payable 7,069, {211,161))
Increase/(decrease) in refunds to participants 3,309.
increasef(decrease) in compensated absences {183.)
Increasef{decrease) in deferred revenue {10,043.)
Total adjustments 34,798. (269,212.)
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities $ 35,848, $(262,589.)

See Accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
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CUMBERLAND COUNTY BOARD OF VOCATIONAL EDUCATION

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FiDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2011

ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Due from Unemployment
Other

Total assets

LIABILITIES:
Due to student groups
Deferred revenue
interfund payable
Payrolt deductions and withholdings
Due to PayrollfAgency
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS:
Held in trust for unemployment claims

EXHIBIT B-7

Unemployment Agency Student
Compensation Trust Fund Activity
$ 108,583. $ 1,994 $210,664.
64.
1,836.
108,583. 2,058. 212,500.
$ $ $ 58,3892
120,349.
844. 33,762.
1,214,
64.
$64. $ 2,058. $ 212,500.
$ 108,519.

See Accompanying Notes fo the Basic Financial Statements
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EXHIBIT B-8

CUMBERLAND COUNTY BOARD OF VOCATIONAL EDUCATION
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUGIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Unemployment
Compensation Trust
ADDITIONS:

Contributions:

Plan member $8,019.
Total contributions B.01¢g.
Investment earnings:

Interest 1,374,
Net investment earnings 1,374.

DEDUCTIONS:

Unemployment claims 64,269.
Total deductions 64,269,
Change in net assels (54,876.)
NET ASSETS - JULY 1 163,395.
NET ASSETS - JUNE 30 $ 108,519.

See Accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
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Cumberland County Board of Vocational Education
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2011

NOTE 1.SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Board of Education (Board) of Cumberland County Vocational Education
School District {(District), a component unit of Cumberland County, have been prepared in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the Board’s
accounting policies are described below,

A. Reporting Entity:

The Cumberland County Board of Vocational Education is a component unit of the County of
Cumberland. The Board is an instrumentality of the State of New Jersey, established to function as an
educational institution. The Board consists of appointed officials and is responsible for the fiscal conirol
of the District. A superintendent is appointed by the Board and is responsible for the administrative
control of the District.

The primary criterion for including activities within the District’s reporting entity, as set forth in section
2100 of the GASB Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, is the
degree of oversight responsibility maintained by the District. Oversight responsibility includes financial
interdependency, selection of governing authority, designation of management, ability to significantly
influence operations and account groups of the District over which the Board exercises operating control.
The operations of the District include a vocational school located in Cumberland County. There were no
additional entities required to be included in the reporting entity under the criteria as described above, in
the current fiscal year.

B. Basic Financial Statements-District-Wide Statements:

The District’s basic financial statements include both district-wide (reporting the District as a whole) and
fund financial statements (reporting the District’s major funds). Both the district-wide and find financial
staternents categorize primary activities as either governmental or business type.

In the district-wide Staternent of Net Assets, both governmental and business-type activities columns are
presented on a consolidated basis by column, and are reported on a full accrual, economic resource basis,
which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term debt and obligations, The
District’s net assets are reported in three parts-invested in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted net
assets; and unrestricted net assets.

The district-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net costs of each of the District’s

functions and business-fype activities. The functions are also supported by general government revenues,
The Statement of Activities reduces gross expenses (including depreciation) by related program revenues,
operating and capital grants. Program revenues must be directly associated with the function or business-

type activity.

This district-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the District as an entity and the change in the
District’s net assets resulting from the current year’s activities.
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Cumberland County Board of Vocational Education
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 201¥

NOTE 1.SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C. Basic Financial Statements-Fund Financial Statements:

The financial transactions of the District are reported in individual fimds in the financial statements.
Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprises its
assets, labilities, reserves, fund equity, revemues and expenditures/expenses. The various funds are
reported by generic classification within the financial statements.

The following fund fypes are used by the District:
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

The focus of the governmental funds’® measurement (in the fund statements) is upon determination of
financial position and changes in financial position (sources, uses and balances of financial resources)
rather than upon net income. The following is a description of the governmental funds of the District:

General Fund: The general fund is the general operating fimd of the District. It is used to
account for al! financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

As required by the New Jersey State Department of Education, the District includes budgeted
Capital Outlay in the fund. Generally accepted accounting principles as they pertain to
governmental entities state that General Fund resources may be used to directly finance capital
outlays for long-lived improvements as long as the resources in such cases are derived
exclusively from unresiricted revenues.

Resources for budgeted capital outlay purposes are normally derived from State of New Jersey
Aid, district taxes and appropriated fund balance. Expenditures are those that result in the
acquisition of or additions to fixed assets for land, existing buildings, improvements of grounds,
construction of buildings, additions to or remodeling of buildings and the purchase of built-in
equipment, These resources can be transferred from and to Current Expense by board
resolution.

Special Revenue Fund: The Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the proceeds of
specific revenue from State and Federal Government, (other than major ¢apital projects, Debt
Service or the Enterprise Funds) and local appropriations that are legally restricted to
expenditures for specified purposes.

Capital Projects Fund: The capital projects fund is used to account for all financial resources to
be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities {other than those financed
by proprietary funds). The financial resources are derived from temporary notes or serial bonds
that are specifically authorized by the County Board of School Estimate.

Debt Service Fund: The debt service fund is used to account for the accumaulation of resources
for, and the payment of, principal and interest on bonds issued to fimance major property
acquisition, construction, and improvement programs. ' As a Type I School District, debt service
revenues and expenditures take place at the County level.
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Cumberland County Board of Vecational Education
Noates to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2011

NOTE 1.SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C. Basic Financial Statemenis-Fund Financial Statements: (Continued)

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

The focus of Proprietary Fund measurement is upon determination of operaiing income, changes in net
assets, financial position and cash flows. The generally accepted accounting principles applicable are
those similar to businesses in the privaie sector. The following is a description of the Proprietary Funds
of the District:

Enterprise Funds: The enterprise fund accounts for all revenues and expenses pertaining io
cafeteria operations, house construction projects, supermarket careers, food service restaurant,
customized training, and educational technology training center programs. The food service
fund, house construction fund, supermarket careers fund, food service restayrant and the
customized training funds are utilized to account for operations that are financed and operated in
a manner similar to private business enterprises. The stated intent is that the cost (i.e. expenses
including depreciation and indirect costs) of providing goods or services on a continuing basis
are financed or recovered primarily through user charges.

Internal Serviee Fund: A fund used to account for the financing of goods or services provided
by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of an LEA, or to other LEAs, on
a cost-teimbursement basis. The District’s internal service fund consists of a transportation
cooperative.

Depreciation of all exhaustive fixed assets used by proprietary funds is charged as an expense against
their operations. Accumulated deprectation is reported on proprietary fund statements of net assets,
Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful lives using the straight-ling method. The
estimated useful lives are as follows:

Joint Pupil Transportation Fund:

Furniture and Equipment 5 to 7 years
School Bus § years
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Fiduciary Funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others and therefore are
not available to support District programs. The reporting focus is on net assets and changes i net assets
and are reported using accounting principles similar to proprietary funds. The following is a description
of the fiduciary funds of the District:

Agency Funds: Agency funds are used to account for the assets that the District holds on behalf
of others as their agent. Agency funds are custodial in nature and do not involve measurement
of results of operations. Agency funds include payroll and student activities funds,

Unemployment Compensation Trust: The Unemployment Compensation Trust Fund consists of
assets that the District has reserved for possible future unemployment claims,
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Cumberland County Board of Vocational Education
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2011

NOTE 1L.SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Centinued)
D. Basis of Accounting:

Measurement focus is a term used to describe “which” transactions are recorded within the various
financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to “when” {ransactions are recorded regardiess of the
measurement focus applied.

Measurement Focus

On the district-wide Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, both governmental and
business-like activities are presented using economic resources measurement focus as defined below.

In fund financial statements, the “current financial resources” measurement focus or the “economic
resources” measurement focus as appropriate.

»  All government funds utilize a “current financial resources” measurement focus. Only
current financial assets and liabilities are generally included on their balance sheets. Their
operating statsments present sources and uses of available spendable financial resources
during a given period. These funds use fund balances as their measure of available
spendable financial resources at the end of the period.

o  The proprietary fund utilized an “economic resources” measurement focus. The accounting
objectives of this measurement focus are the determination of operating income, changes in
net assets {or cost recovery), financial position, and cash flows. All assets and liabilities
(whether cutrent or non-current) associated with their activities are reported. Proprietary
fund equity is classified as net assets,

e Agency funds are not involved in the measurement of results of operations; therefore,
measurement focus is not applicable to them.

Basis of Accounting

In the district-wide Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities, both governmental and business-
like activities are presented using the accrual basis of accounting, Under the accrual basis of accounting,
revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred or
economic asset is used. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from exchange-
like transactions are recognized when the exchanpe takes place.

In the fund financial statements, governmental finds and agency funds are presented on the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Under this modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized
when “measurable and available”. Measurable means knowing or being able to reasonably estimate the
amount. Available means collectible within the current period or within sixty days after year-end.
Expenditures (including capital outlay) are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for
general obligation bond principal and interest which are reported when due.

Ad Valorem (Property) Taxes are susceptible to accrual as under New Jersey State Statute a municipality
is required to remit to its school district the entire balance of taxes in the amount voted upon or certified,
prior to the end of the school year. The District records the entire approved tax levy as revenue
(accrued) at the start of the fiscal year, since the revenue is both measurable and available. The District
is entitled to receive moneys under the established payment schedule and the unpaid amount is
congidered to be an “accounts receivable”,
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Cumberland County Board of Vocational Education
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2011

NOTE 1.SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
D. Basis of Accounting; (Continned)

All proprietary funds utilized the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting,
revenues are recognized when carned and expenses are recorded when the lability is incurred or
economic asset is used.

E. Budgets/Budgetary Control;

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the general, special revenue, and
debt service funds. The budgets are submitted to the county office for approval and are voted upon at
the annual school election on the third Tuesday in April. Budgets are prepared using the modified
accrual basis of accounting, except for the special revenue fund as described later. The legal level of
budgetary control is established at line item accounts within each fund, Line item accounts are defined
as the lowest (most specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts
referenced in N.J.A.C. 6:20-2A.2(m)]. Transfers of appropriations may be made by School Board
vesolution at any time during the fiscal year.

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control device
during the year. For govermmental funds there are no substantial differences between the budgetary basis
of accounting and generally accepted accounting principles with the exception of the legally mandated
revenue recognition of the last state aid payment for budgetary purposes only and the special revenue
fund as noted below. Incumbrance accounting i3 also employed as an extension of formal budgetary
integration in the governmental fund types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant accounting budgetary
basis. The grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant accounting budgetary
basis recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the
GAAP basis does not. Sufficient supplemental records are maintained to allow for the presentation of
GAAP basis financial reports.
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Cumberland County Board of Vecational Education
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2011

NOTE 1.SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

E. Budgets/Budgetary Control: (Continued)

Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and GAAP Revenues and
Expenditures.

General Fund Special Capital Project
Revenue Fund Fund
Sources/inflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary) “revenues” $8,231,678. $472,002. $3,404,108.

State aid payment recognized for GAAP

statements in the current year

previously recognized for budgetary

purposes. 396,143. 0. 0.
State Aid Payment not recognized for

GAAP purposes until the subsequent

year. (353,975.) 0. (1,869,378.)
Adjust for Encumbrances:
Add Prior Year Encwunbrances N/A 23,641, N/A
Less Current Year Encumbrances N/A (6,186.) N/A
Total Revenues and Financing Sources
(GAAP Basis) $8,273,846, $489.457. $1,534,730.
Uses/outflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary) “total outflows” $7,469,447. $472,002. $286,993,
Adjustments:
Add Prior Year Encumbrances N/A 23,641, N/A
Less Cwirent Year Encumbrances N/A {6,186.) N/A
Total Expenditures (GAAP Basis) $7.469,447. $489.457. $286,993.

F. Encumbrances:

Under encumbrance accounting purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the expenditure of
resources are recorded to reserve a portion of the applicable appropriation. Open encumbrances in
governmental funds other than the special revenue find are reported as reservations of fund balances at
fiscal year end as they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities but rather commitments refated to
unperformed contracts for goods and services.

Open encumbrances in the special revenue fund for which the District bas received advances are
reflected in the balance sheet as deferred revenues at fiscal year end.

The ¢ncumbered appropriation authority carries over imio the next fiscal year. An entry will be made at

the beginning of the next fiscal year to increase the appropriation reflected in the certified budget by the
outstanding encumbrance amount as of the current fiscal year end.
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Cumberland County Board of Vecational Education
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2011

NOTE |.SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

G. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments:

Cash and cash equivalents include petty cash, change funds, cash in banks and aH highly liquid
investments with a maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase and are stated at cost plus
accrued interest. U.S. Treasury and agency obligations and certificates of deposit with maturities of one
year or less when purchased are stated at cost. All other invesiments are stated at fair value.

New Jersey school districts are limited as to the types of investments and types of financial institutions
they may invest in. New Jersey statuies 18A:20-37 provides a list of permissible investments that may
be purchased by New Jersey school districts.

N.I.S.A. 17:9-41 et. seq. establishes the requirements for the security of deposits of governmental units.
The statute requires that no governmental unit shall deposit public funds in a depository unless such
funds are secured in accordance with the Act. Public depositories include Savings and Loan institutions,
banks (both state and national banks) and savings banks the deposits of which are federally insured. Al
public depositories must pledge collateral, having a market value at least equal to five percent of the
average daily balance of collected public funds, to secure the deposits of Governmental Units. Ifa
public depository fails, the collateral it has pledged, plus the collateral of all other public depositories, is
available to pay the full amount of their deposits to the Governmental Units.

H. Tuition Receivable:
Tuition charges were established by the Board of Education based on estimated costs. The charges are
subject to adjustment when the final costs have been determined.

1. Tuition Payable:
Tuition charges for the fiscal year 2009-2010 is based on rates established by the receiving district.

These rates are subject to change when the actual costs have been determined.

J.  Inventories:

inventories in the Proprietary Funds are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the first-in-
first-out (FIFO) method. Prepaid expenses in the Enterprise Fund represent payments made fo vendors
for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2010,

K. Short-Term Interfund Receivables/Payables:

Short-term interfund receivables/payables represents amounts that are owed, other than charges for goods
or services rendered to/from a particular fund in the District and that are due within one year.

L. Fixed Assels:

The accounting treatment over property, plant and equipment (fixed assets) depends on whether the
assets are used in the governmental fund operations, or proprietary fund operations and whether they are
reported in the district-wide or fund financial statements.

District-wide Statemenis

in the district-wide financial statements, fixed assets are accounted for as capital assets. All
fixed assets are valued at historical cost, or estimated historical cost if actual is unavailabie, as
determined by an independent appraisal company. Donated fixed assets are valued at their
estimated fair market value on the date received.
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Cumberland County Board of Vocational Education
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2011

NOTE 1.SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

L. Fixed Assets: (Continued)

Distriet-wide Statements (Continued)

Depreciation of all exhaustible fixed assets is recorded as allocated expenses in the Statement of
Activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the Statement of Net Assefs. Depreciation
is provided over the assets’ estimated useful lives using the straight-line method of depreciation.
The range of estimated useful lives by type of assets is as follows:

Land Improvements 20 years
Building & Building Improvements 25-50 years
Machinery & Equipment 5-20 years

Fund Financial Statements
In the fund financial statements, fixed assets used in povernment fund operations are accounted

for as capital owtlay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition. Fixed assets used
in proprietary fund operations are accounted for the same as in the district-wide statements.

M. Compensated Absences:

Compensated absences are those absences for which employees will be paid, such as vacation, sick leave,
and sabbatical leave. A liability for compensated absences that are atiributable to services already
rendered, and that are not contingent on a specific event that is outside the confrol of the District and its
employees, is accrued as the employees earn the rights to the benefits. Compensated absences that relate
to future services, or that are contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the Disirict and
its employees, are accounted for in the period in which such services are rendered or in which such
events take place.

The liability for these compensated absences is recorded as long-term debt in the district-wide statements.
In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report only the compensated absences that are
expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources, while the proprietary fund
reporis the lability as it is incurred.

N. Deferred Revenue:

Deferred revenue in the special revenue fund and internal service fimd represents cash that has been
received but not yet earned.

O. Long-term Debt

The accounting treatment of long-term debt depends on whether the assets are used in governmental fund
operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in the district-wide or fund
financial statements.

All long-term debt to be repaid from governmental and business-type resources are reported as liabilities
in the district-wide statements. The long-term debt consists primarily of accrued compensated absences.
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Cumberland County Board of Vocational Educatlon
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2011

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
P. Use of Estimates
Management pses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements. Those estimates and

assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities, and the reported revenues and expenses.

NOTE 2.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and cash equivalents includes petty cash, change funds, amounts in deposits, and short term
investments with original maturities of three months or less,

Investments are stated at cost, which approximates market. The Board classifies certificates of deposit,
which have original maturity dates of more than three months but less than twelve months from the date
of purchase, as investments,

Deposits:

New Jersey statutes require that school districts deposit public funds in public depositories located in
New Jersey which are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, the Federal Savings and
Loan Insurance Corporation, or by any other agency of the United States that insures deposits made in
public depositories. School districts are also permitted to deposit public funds in the State of New Jersey
Cash Management Fund.

New Jersey statutes require public depositories to maintain collateral for deposits of public finds that
exceed depository insurance limits as follows:

The market value of the collateral must equal at least 5% of the average daily balance of
collected public funds on deposit.

In addition to the above coliateral requirement, if the public funds deposited exceed 75% of the capital
funds of the depository, the depository must provide collateral having a market value at least equal to
100% of the amount exceeding 75%.

All collateral must be deposited with the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, the Federal Reserve Bank
of Philadelphia, the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York, or a banking institution that is a member of
the Federal Reserve System and has capital funds of not less than $25,000,000.

Investments:
New Jersey statutes permits the Board to purchase the following types of securities:

a.) Bonds or other obligations of the United States or obligations guaranteed by the United
States.

b.) Bonds or any Federal Intermediate Credit Bank, Federal Home Loan Bank, Federal
National Mortgage Agency or of any Unifed States Bank for Cooperatives which have a
matutity date not greater than twelve months from the date of purchase.

c.) Bonds or other obligations of the school district.
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Cumberland County Board of Vocational Education
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2011

NOTE 2.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
Investments: (Continued)

As of June 30, 2011 cash and cash equivalents and investments of the District consisted of the following:

Cash and Cash

Equivalents Total
Checking and savings accounts $1,884,865.  $1,884,865.
TOTAL $1,884,865. $£1,884,865.

The carrying amount of the Board’s cash and cash equivalents and investments at June 30, 2011 was
$1,884,865. and the bank balance was $2,802,618. Of the bank balance, $250,000. was covered by
federal depository insurance and $2,552,618. was covered by a collateral pool as required by New Jersey
statates,

NOTE 3.CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNT

A capital reserve account was established by the Cumberland County Board of Vocational Education by
inclusion of $1. on June 30, 2001 for the accummylation of funds for use as capital outlay expenditures in
subsequent fiscal years. The capital reserve account is maintained in the general fund and its activity is
included in the general fund annual budget,

Funds placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects in the Distric’s Long Range
Facilities Plan {LRFP). Upon submission of the LRFP to the department, a district may increase the
balance in the capital reserve by appropriating funds in the annuval general fund budget certified for taxes
or by transfer by board resolution at year end of any unanticipated revenue or unexpended line-item
appropriation amounts, or both. A district may also appropriate additional amounts when the express
approval of the voters has been obtained either by a separate proposal at budget time or by a special
question at one of the four special elections authorized pursuant to N.J.S.4. 19:60-2. Pursuant to
N.JAC. 6A23A-14.1(g), the balance in the account cannot at any time exceed the local support costs of
uncompleted capital projects in #ts approved LRFP.

The activity of the capital reserve for the July 1, 2010 to June 30, 2011 fiscal year is as follows:

Beginning balance, July 1, 2010 $322,446.
Interest earnings 3,465.
Deposits

Approved at April, 2010 election 0.
Withdrawals 0.
Ending balance, June 30, 2011 $325,911.

The June 30, 2011 LRFP balance of local support costs of uncompleted capital projects at June 30, 2011
is $9,986,500.
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Cumberland County Board of Vocational Education
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2011

NOTE 4, MAINTENANCE RESERVE ACCOUNT
A maintenance reserve account was established by the Cumberland County Board of Vocational
Education during 2002-2003 and transferred $138,400. into that account.

The maintenance reserve account is used to accumulate funds for the required maintenance of a facility
in accordance with EFCFA (N.J.8.4.18A:7G-9). EFCFA requires that upon district completion of a
school facilities project, the district must submit a plan for the maintenance of that facility. All such
plans must include a provision for a maintenance reserve fund.

The activity of the maintenance reserve account for July 1, 2010 to June 30, 2011 fiscal year is as
follows:

Beginning balance, July 1, 2010 $143,900,
Withdrawals: 0.
Deposits 0.
Ending balance, June 30, 2011 $143,900.

The June 30, 2011 maximmm maintenance reserve amount is $5,346,356.

NOTE 3. FIXED ASSETS
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2011 was as follows:

Beginning Balance Additions Retirements Adjustments Ending Balance
Governmental Activities:
Capital Assets That Are Not
Being Depreciated:
Land $ 106,168. 5 b $ $ 106,168.
Construction in Progress 122,963. 367,725, {117,258.) 373,430,
Total Capital Assets Not
Being Depreciated 229,131, 367,725, 0. {117,258 479,598.
Big, & Bldg. Improve. 3,855,904. 3,855,904,
Site Improvements 747,196. 38,025, 785,221,
Machinery & Equip. 1,994,885. 53,745. {579.) 2,045,209,
Totats at Historical Cost 6,597,985. 91,770. 0. {579 6,690,334.
Less: Accum Deprec for:
Bldg. & Bldg. Improve. (3,030,814.) (72,460.) {6,838.) (3.110,112)
Site Improvements (369,537.) (35.197.) (3,025.) (407,759.)
Machinery & Equipment {951,789.) (135,162.) (6,679.) (1,093,630,
Total Accum Deprec (4,352,140.) (242,819) 0. (16,542.) (4,611,501.)
Total Capital Assets
Being Depreciated Net of
Accum Depreciation 2,245,845. {151,049) (15,963.) 2,078,833.
Governmentat Activities
Capital Assets, Net $2,474,976. $216,676. $o. $(133,221.) $2,558,431.
Business-type Activities: :
Internal Service Fund:
Equipment 65,780. 65,780.
Less Accum Dep for:

Equipment (46,885.) {7,557} (54,442)
Total Internal Ser.Fund 18,805, (1,557.) 0. 0. 11,338,
Business-Type Activ Capital
Assets, Net $18,895. $(7,557.) $0. $0. $11,338.
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Cumberland County Board of Vocational Education
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2011

NOTE 3. FIXED ASSETS (Continued)
*Depreciation Expense was Charged to Governmental Functions as Follows:

Instruction:
Regular $(206,396.)
Suppert Services:
Student & Instruction Related Services (9,713.)
School Administration (14,569.)
General and Business Administrative Services 9,713
Plant Operations and Maintenance (2,428.)
Total Depreciation Expense $(242,819.)

NOTE 6.INVENTORY
Inventory in the Enterprise Funds at June 30, 2011 consisted of the following:

Food Service — Food and Supplies $316.
Supermarket Carcers — Food and Supplies 9,606.
House Construction — Houses 75,962,

$85,884.

For value of Federal donated commodities as reflected on Schedule A, the Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards is the difference between market value and cost of the commaodities at the date of
purchase and has been included as an item of non-operating revenue in the financial statements.

NOTE 7.GENERAL 1ONG-TERM DEBT

The reporting entity’s long-term debt is segregated between the amounts to be repaid from governmental

activities and amounts to be repaid from business-type activities:

Balance at Balance at Amounts Due
Type of Debt 6/30/10 Additions  Reductions 6/30/11 Within 1 Year
Governmental Activities: '
Compensated Absen Pay  $162,110. $9,723. $0. $171,833. $33,075.
Total Governmental Act:  $162,110. $9,723, $0. $171,833. $33,075.

NOTE 8.OPERATING LEASES

During the year ended June 30, 2011, the District was leasing various office equipment under operating
leases, Leases were for varjous terms. The District’s total equipment lease expense for the vear ended

June 30, 2011 was $23,808.

The future minimum lease payments under these leases are as follows:

2011-2012 $33,238.
2012-2013 29,270.
2013-2014 9.430.
2014-2015 5,940,
Total $77,878.
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Cumberland County Board of Vocational Education
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2011

NOTE 9.PENSION PLANS

Description of Plans — All required employees of the District are covered by either the Public
Employees’ Retirement System or the Teachers” Pension and Annuity Fund which have been established
by state statute and are administered by the New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits (Division).
According to the State of New Jersey Administrative Code, all obligations of both Systems will be
assumed by the State of New Jersey should the Systems terminate. The Division issues a publicly
available financial report that includes the financial statements and required supplementary information
for the Public Employees Retirement System and the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund. These reports
may be obtained by writing to the Division of Pensions and Benefits, P.O. Box 295, Trenton, New
Jersey, 08625.

Teachers® Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) - The Teachers’® Pension and Annuity Fund was
established as of January 1, 1955, under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:66 to provide retirement
benefits, death, disability and medical benefiis to certain qualified members. The Teachers® Pension and
Annuity Fund is considered a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan with a special funding situation, as
under currenf statute, all employer contributions are made by the State of New Jersey on behalf of the
District and the systems’ other related non-contributing employers. Membership is mandatory for
substantially all teachers or members of the professional staff certified by the State Board of Examiners,
and employees of the Depariment of Education who have titles that are unclassified, professional and
certified.

Public Emplovees’ Retirement System (PERS) — The Public Employces’ Retirement System (PERS) was
established as of January 1, 1955 under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 43:15A {o provide retirement, death,
disability and medical benefits to certain qualified members. The Public Employees’ Retirement System
is a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan. Membership is mandatory for substantially all full-

time employees of the State of New Jersey or any county, municipality, school district, or public agency,
provided the employee is not required to be a member of another state-administered retirement system or
other state or local jurisdiction.

Vesting and Benefit Provisions — The vesting and benefit provisions for PERS are set by N.J.S.A.
43:15A and 43.3B, and N.J.S5.A. 18A:6C for TPAF. All benefits vest after eight to ten years of service,
except for medical benefits that vest after 25 years of service. Retirement benefits for age and service
are available at age 60 and are generally determined to be 1/60 of the final average salary for each year
of service credit, as defined. Final average salary equals the average salary for the final three years of
service prior to retirement (or highest three years” compensation if other than the final three years).
Members may seek early retirement after achieving 25 years of service credit or they may elect deferred
retirement after achieving eight to ten years of service in which case benefits would begin the first day of
the month afier the member attains normal retirement age. The TPAF and PERS provides for specified
medical benefits for members who retire after achieving 25 years of qualified service, as defined, or
under the disability provisions of the System.

Members are always fully vested for their own contributions and, after three years of service credit,
become vested for 2% of related interest eamed on the coniributions. In the case of death before
retirement, members’ beneficiaries are entitled to full interest credit to the members’ accounts,
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Cumbertand County Board of Vocational Education
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2011

NOTE 9.PENSION PLANS (Continued)

Significant Legislation — During the year ended June 30, 1997, legislation was enacted (Chapter 114,
P.L. 1997) authorizing the New Jersey Economic Development Authority to issue bonds, notes or other
obligations for the purpose of financing, in full or in part, the State of New Jersey retirement systems.
Additional legislation enacted during the year ended June 30, 1997 (Chapter 115, P.L. 1997) changed the
asset valuation method from market related value to full-market value. This legislation also contained a
provision to reduce the employee contribution rate by % of 1% to 4.5% for calendar years 1998 and
1999, and to allow for a reduction in the employee’s rate after calendar year 1999, providing excess
valuation assets are available. The legislation also provided that the Districts” normal contributions to
the Fund may be reduced based on the revaluation of assets. Due to recognition of the bond proceeds
and the change in asset valuation method as a result of enaciment of Chapiers 114 and 115, all unfunded
accrued labilities were eliminated, except for the unfunded lability for local early retirement incentive
benefits, accordingly, the pension costs for TPAF and PERS were reduced.

Contribution Requirements - The contribution policy is set by N.JLS.A. 43:15A, Chapter 62, P.L. of
1994, Chapter 115, P.L. of 1997 and N.J.S.A. 18:66, and requires contributions by active members and
contributing employers. Plan member and employer contributions may be amended by State of New
Jersey legislation. TPAF and PERS provide for employee contributions of 5% of employees’ annual
compensation, as defined. Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate in both
TPAF and PERS. The actuarially determined contribution inclades funding for both cost-of-living
adjustments, noncontributory death benefits, and post-retirement medical premiums. Under current
statute the District is a non-contributing employer of the TPAF.

Three-Year Trend Information for PERS

Annual Percentage Net
Year Pension Of APC Pension
Funding Cost (APC Contributed Obligation
June 30, 2011 $167,298. 0% $167,298,
June 30, 2010 120,198. 0% 120,198.
June 30, 2009 100,070, 0% 100,070,

_Three-Year Trend Information for TPAF
(Paid on Behalf of the District)

Annual Percentage Net
Year Pension Of APC Pension
Funding Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
June 30, 2011 $207,052. 100% $0.
June 30, 2010 213,423, 100%% 0.
June 30, 2009 212,265. 100% 0.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, the State of New Jersey contributed $207,052. to the TPAF
for normal and post-retirement benefits on behalf of the District. Also, in accordance with N.J.S.A.
18A:66-66 the State of New Jersey reimbursed the District $207,568. during the year ended June 30,
2011 for the employer’s share of social security contributions for TPAF members, as calculated on their
base salaries. This amount has been inchuded in the general purpose financial statements, and the
combining and individual fund and account group statements and schedules as a revenue and expenditure
in accordance with GASB 27,
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Cumberland County Board of Vocational Education
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2011

NOTE 10.POST RETIREMENT BENEFITS

P.L. 1987, c. 384 and P.L. 1990, ¢.6 required Teachers’ Pensions and Amnuity Fund (TPAF) and the
Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS), respectively, to fund post-retirement medical benefits for
those State employees who retire after accumulating 25 years of credited service or on a disability
tetirement. P.L. 2007, ¢.103 amended the law to eliminate the finding of post-retirement medical
benefits through the TPAF and PERS. It created separate funds outside of the pension plans for the
funding and payment of post-retirement medical benefits for retired State employees and retived
educational employees. As of June 30, 2010, there were 87,288 retirees eligible for post-retirement
medical benefits. The cost of these benefits is funded through contributions by the State in accordance
with P.L. 1994, ¢.62. Funding of post-retirement medical premiums changed from a pre-funding basis to
a pay-as-you-go basis beginning in fiscal year 1994, '

The State is also responsible for the cost attributable to P.1. 1992, ¢.126 which provides free health
benefits to members of PERS and the Alternate Benefit Program who retired from a board of education
or county college with 25 years of service. The State paid $126.3 million toward Chapter 126 benefits
for 14,050 eligible retired members in fiscal year 2010.

NOTE 11.RISK MANAGEMENT:

The District is exposed to various types of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

Property and Liability Insurance — The District maintains commercial insurance coverage for property,
liability, student accident and surety bonds. A complete schedule of insurance coverage can be found in
the Statistical Section of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance — The District has elected to fimd iis New Jersey
Unemployment Compensation Insurance under the “Benefit Reimbursement Method”. Under this plan,
the District is required to reimburse the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits paid to its
former employees and charged to its account with the State. The Disirict is billed guarterly for amounts
due to the State, The following is a summary of District contributions, employee contributions,
reimbutsements to the State for benefits paid and the ending balance of the District’s expendable trust
fund for the current and previous two years:

District Employee Interest Amount Ending

Fiscal Year  Confributions  Contributions Income Reimbursed Balance
2010-2011 $0. $8,019, $1,374. $64,269. $108,519.
2009-2010 0. 8,576. 2,378, 19,176. 163,395.
2008-2009 0. 7.637. 4,284, 10,299, 171,617.
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Cumberland County Board of Vocational Education
Notes {0 the Financial Statements
June 30, 2011

NOTE 12.DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The Board offers its employees a choice of the following deferred compensation plans created in
accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b). The plans, which are administered by the
entities listed below, permits participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years, Amounis
deferred under the plans are not available to employees until termination, retirement, death or
unforeseeable emergency. The plan administrators are as follows:

Thomas Seecly Agency
Vanguard Group
A.G. Edwards, Inc.
Lincoln Investment Planning
Allen Associates

NOTE 13 INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

The following interfund balances remained on the balance sheet at June 30, 2011,

Due to: Dug From:
General Special Rev, Cap. Pjts. Enterprise Internal Serv. Fiduciary Total
General $ $ $197,051. $67,945. $ $34.606. $299,602.
Enterprise Fd, 21,207. 21,207,
Internal Sv, Fd. 27,859, 27,859,
Fiduciary Fd. o
Total $49,066, $0. $197,051. $67,945. $0. $34.606. $348,668,

The balance of $197,051. due to the general fund from the capital projects fund represents funds from
the general fund used for working capital in advance of the receipt of bond proceeds being held by
Cumberland County. These amounts will be repaid when the funds are received from Cumberiand
County during a subsequent year.

General Fund advanced cash to various Enterprise Funds periodically to alleviate cash flow problems in
the Enterprise Fund.

The remaining balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that:
I. The interfund transactions occur;
2. Transactions are recorded in the accounting system; and
3. Payments between funds are made.

NOTE 14.COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g. unused vacation, sick leave) as directed by
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 16 (GASB 16), “Accounting for Compensated
Absences”. A liability for compensated absences atiributable to services already rendered and not
contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the employer and employee is accrued as
employees earn the rights to the benefits.

District employees are granted varying amounts of vacation and sick leave in accordance with the
District’s personnel policy. Upon termination, employees are paid for accrued vacation. The District’s
policy permits employees to accumulate unused sick leave and carry forward the full amount to
subsequent years. Upon retirement, employees shall be paid by the District for the unused sick leave in
accordance with the District’s agreements with the various emplioyee unions.
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NOTE 14.COMPENSATED ABSENCES (Continued)

In the district-wide Statement of Net Assets, the liabilities whose average maturities are greater than one
year should be reported in two components - the amount due within one year and the amount due in
more than one year.

The liability for vested compensated absences of the proprietary fund types is recorded within those

funds as the benefits accrue to employees. As of June 30, 2011, a liability existed for compensated
absences in the Proprietary Funds in the amount of $6,635.

NOTE 15.FUND BALANCE APPROPRIATED

General Fund - Of the $2,410,679. General Fund balance at June 30, 2011, $809,373 is reserved for
encumbrances; $987,181. is reserved as excess surplus in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-7 ($33,859.
of the total reserve for excess surplus has been appropriated and included as anticipated revenue for the
year ending June 30, 2012); $325,911. has been reserved in the Capital Reserve Account; $143,900. has
been reserved in the Maintenance Reserve Account; $75,000. has been appropriated and included as
anticipated revenue for the year ending June 30, 2012; and $69,314. is unreserved and undesignated.

NOTE 16.CONTINGENT LIABIITIES

The Board is involved in several claims and lawsuits incidental to its operation. In the opinion of the
administration and legal counsel, the ultimate resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse
effect on the financial position of the District.

NOTE 17.CALCULATION OF EXCESS SURPLIJS

In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-7, the designation for Reserved Fund Balance — Excess Surplus is a
required calculation pursuant to the New Jersey Comprehensive Educational Improvement and Financing
Act of 1996 (CEIFA). New Jersey school districts are required to reserve General Fund fund balance at
the fiscal year end of June 30, if they did not appropriate a required minimum amount as budgeted fund
balance in their subsequent years’” budget. The excess fund balance at June 30, 2011 is $987,181.

NOTE 18.0THER INFORMATION

On February 22, 2011, the County of Cumberland adopted Ordinance 2011-1. This Ordinance re-
appropriated the proceeds of previous bond issues related to the Couniy Vocational Technicat School and
authorized those funds to be used for other capital projects related to the County Vocational Technical
School. The result of this action by the County to the school was the cancellation of existing capital
projects and the recording of the newly authorized projects. An interfund of $26,000. due from the
Capital Project Fund to the General Fund related to the old project was cancelled.
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EXHIBIT C-3

CUMBERLAND COUNTY BOARD OF VOCATIONAIL EDUCATION

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Expianation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and GAAP Revenues

and Expenditures

Sources/inflows of resources
. Actual amounts (budgetary) "revenues” from the budgetary
comparison schedules

Difference - budget to GAAP:
Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from
GAAP in that encumbrances are recognized as
expenditures, and the related revenue is recognized.
Prior year encumbrance
Current year encumbrance

State aid payment recognized for GAAP statements in the
current year, previously recognized for budgetary purposes.

Siate aid payment recognized for budgetary purposes, hot
recognized for GAAP statements until the subsequent year.

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental funds.

Uses/outflows of resources
Actual amounts {budgetary basis) "total outflows" from the
budgetary comparison schedule

Differences - budget to GAAP:
Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered
but not received are reported in the year the order is
placed for budgetary purposes, but in the year the
supplies are received for financial reporting purposes.
Prior year encumbrance
Current year encumbrance

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances - governmental funds

|

General
Fund

Special Revenue

Fund

$8,231,678.

N/A

396,143

(353,975.)

$ 472,002

23,641,
(6,186.)

$ 8,273,846.

$ 489,457.

$ 7,469,447.

N/A

$ 472,002

23,641.
(6,186.)

$ 7,469,447,

$ 489,457,




SCHOOL LEVEL SCHEDULES

N/A




SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
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EXHIBIT F-2

CUMBERLAND COUNTY BOARD OF VOCATIONAL EDUCATION

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Revenues and Other Financing Sources:
State sources - SDA Grant
Bond proceeds

Total revenues

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses:
Purchased professional and technical services
Construction services
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over {under) expenditures
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfer/cancellation
Totat other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances
Fund balance - beginning

Fund balance - ending

45

$2,071,663.
1,332,445.
3,404,108,

215,885,
71,108.
286,993,

3,117,115,

(265,000.)
265,000.

2,852,115.
265,000,

$ 3,117,115.




CUMBERLAND COUNTY BOARD OF VOCATIONAL EDUCATION

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE

AND PROJECT STATUS - BUDGETARY BASIS

ROOF AND HVAC REPAIRS AND UPGRADES. DOOR AND HARDWARE UPGRADES

EROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

EXHIBIT F-2a

Revenues and other financing sources:
State sources - SDA Grant $
Bond proceeds-County of Cumberland

Total revenues 0.

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses:
Purchased professionalitechnical services
Construction services

Total expenditures 0.

Excess (deficiency} or revenues over (under)

Revised
Authotized
Prior Periods Current Year Totals Cost
$2071663. $2071663.  $2,071,663
866,449, 866,449, 866,449,
2,938,112, 2,938,112, 2,938,112
215,781. 215,781, 255,000.
71,108. 71,108. 2683112,
286,889. 286,889, 2,938,112,
$2,651,223. §$ 2651223 $0.

expendifures $0.

Additional project information:

Project Number 1995-030-09-GOXL
Grant Date 051211
Bond Authorization Date 02722111
Bonds Authorized $ 866,449,
Bonds lssued $ 866,449.
Original Authorized Cost $ 2,938,112
Additional Authorized Cost 50
Revised Authorized Cost $2,938112,
Percentage Increase Over Original Authorized Cost N/A
Percentage Completion 9.76%
Criginal Target Completion Date N/A
Revised Target Completion Date N/A
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CUMBERLAND COUNTY BOARD OF VOCATIONAL EDUCATION

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDRULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE

AND PROJECT STATUS - BUDGETARY BASIS

WATER WEL! SYSTEM

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 2011

Revenues and other financing sources:
Bond proceeds-County of Cumberland

Total revenues

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses:
Purchased professionalftechnical services
Construction services

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) or revenues over {under)
expenditures

Additional project information:
Project Number

Grant Date

Bond Authorization Date
Bonds Authorized

Bonds Issued

Originai Authorized Cost
Additional Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cosi

Percentage Increase Over Original Authorized Cost
Percentage Completion

Original Target Completion Date

Revised Target Compietion Date

EXHIBIT F-2b

Revised
Authorized
Prior Periods Current Year Totals Cost
$ $ 465,096,  $ 465,998 $ 465,996.
0. 465,996, 465,99_6. 465,996.
104. 104. 50,000.
415,996,
0. 104, 104, 465,996,
30. $ 465,892, $ 465,882, $0.

0995-030-04-1000

N/A
02/24/04
$ 340,000.
$ 340,000.
$ 340,000.
$0.

$ 340,000.

N/A
22.1%
N/A
N/A
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUND




EXHIBIT G4

CUMBERLAND COUNTY BOARD OF VOCATIONAL EDUCATION
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
AS OF JUNE 30, 2011

Transporiation Internal

Service Fund
ASSETS:
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 285,890.

Accounts receivable 597,498.

Interfund receivable 27.858.

Other 550.

Total current asseis 911,796,
Fixed assets:

Vehicles 60,459,

Equipment 5,321.

Accumulated depreciatioon (b4,442)

Total fixed assets 11,338.
Total assets $ 923,134
LIABILITIES:

Current liabilities:

Accounts payabie $ 466,367.

Refund to participants 58,257.

Deferred revenue 2,323

Prepaid benefits 4427,

Totat current liabilities 531,374.

Noncurrent liabilities:

Compensated absences 6,635.
Total Noncurrent liabilities 6,635,
Total liabilities 538,009,
NET ASSETS:

Invested in fixed assets 11,338.

Unrestricted 373,787.

. Total net assets $ 385,125,
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EXHIBIT G-5

CUMBERLAND COUNTY BOARD OF VOCATIONAL EDUCATION
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND NET ASSETS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Transportation Internal

Service Fund
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services $6,078,614.
Total operating revenues 6,078,614,
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Contracted services 5,687,700.
Supplies 16,573.
Salaries 191,900.
Payroll taxes and fringe benefits 69,547.
Depreciation 7.557.
Other purchased services 39.122.
Refunds {o participating districts 58,257.
Miscellaneous 1,335.
Total operating expenses 6,071,991,
Operating income/(loss) 6,623.
Change in net assets 6,623.
NET ASSETS - JULY 1 378,502
NET ASSETS - JUNE 30 $ 385,125,
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CUMBERLAND COUNTY BOARD OF VOCATIONAL EDUCATION
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

EXHIBIT G-6

Transportation Internal

Service Fund
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from customers and users $ 6,009,881.
Payments to employees {191,900.)
Payments for employees benefits {(69,753.)
Payments to suppliers (6,010,817.)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities {262,589.)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (262,589.)
Cash and cash equivalents - July 1 548,479.
Cash and cash equivalents - June 30 $ 285,890,
Reconciliation of operating income/(loss) to net cash provided/
{used) by operating activities:
Operating income/{loss) $6,623.
Adiustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation expense 7,857.
Change in assets and liabilities:
(increase)/decrease in accounts receivable {109,391.)
{Increase)/decreass in interfund receivable 50,638,
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable (211,161.)
Increasef/(decrease) in refunds to participants 3,309.
Increase/(decrease) in prepaid benefits 62.
Increasel/(decrease) in compensated absence {183.)
Increasef(decrease} in deferred revenue {10,043.)
Net cash provided (used in) operating activities ${262,589.)

53




CUMBERLAND COUNTY BOARD OF VOCATIONAL EDUCATION
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Due from Unemployment
Other accounts receivable

Total assets

LIABILITIES:
Due to student groups
Deferred revenue
Interfund payable
Payroll deductions and withholdings
Due to PayrofifAgency

Total liabilities
NET ASSETS:

Total net assets

A8 OF JUNE 30, 2011

EXHIBIT H-1

Unemployment
Student Cormpensation
Activity Payrol Trust Total

$ 2106864 $ 1,994, $ 108,583. $ 321,241
64. 84,
1,836. 1,336,
$ 212,500. $ 2,058. $ 108,583, $ 323,141
$ 58,389. $ $ $ 58,389.
120,349. 120,349.
33,762. 844. 34,606.
1,214, 1,214.
64. 64.
$ 212,500. $ 2,058. §64. $ 214,622
$0. $0 $ 108,519. $ 108,519
$0. $0 $ 108,519. $ 108,519.
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EXHIBIT H-2

CUMBERLAND COUNTY BOARD OF VOCATIONAL EDUCATION
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Unemployment
Compensation
Trust
ADDITIONS:

Contributions:

Pian member $ 8,019
Total contributions 8,019.
Investment earnings:

Interest 1,374.
Net investment earnings 1,374,

Total additions 9,393,
DEDUCTIONS:

Unemployment claims 64,269.
Total deductions 64,2689,
Change in net assets {54,876.)
NET ASSETS, JULY 1 163,395,
NET ASSETS, JUNE 30 $ 108,519,
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CUMBERLAND COUNTY BOARD OF VOCATIONAL EDUCATION
STUDENT ACTIVITY AGENCY FUND SCHEDULE
OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

FIDUCIARY FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

EXHIBIT H-3

Cash Cash
Balance Cash Cash Balance
July 1, 2010 Receipis Disbursements  June 30, 2011
Student Activities $ 5,857. $2,767. $1,995. $6,629.
Adult Student Account 85,055, 606,838. 515,282. 177,511,
Program Fund 24,500, 5,661. 3,646, 26,524,
Total $ 116,321, $ 615,266, $ 520,923, $ 210,664,
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EXHIBIT H-4

CUMBERLAND COUNTY BOARD OF VOCATIONAL EDUCATION
PAYROLL AGENCY FUND SCHEDULE OF

RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
EIDUCIARY FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Balance Balance
July 1, 2010 Additions Deletions June 30, 20114

ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents $1,798. $ 5,455,209. $ 5,455,013, $ 1,994,

Due from Unemployment 83. 8,019. 8,018. 64,
Total assets $ 1,861, $ 5,463,228. $ 5,463,031, $ 2,058.
LIABILITIES:

Net payroll 3 $3,223,718. $3,223,718. $

Payrolt deductions and withholdings 1,087 2,239,460. 2,239,313. 1,214,

Interfund payable 794. 50. 844,
Totai liabilities $1,861. $ 5,463,228, $ 5,463,031, $ 2,058.
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LONG-TERM DEBT

N/A
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FINANCIAL TRENDS
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REVENUE CAPACITY




EXHIBIT J-9

CUMBERLAND COUNTY BOARD OF VOCATIONAL EDUCATION

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Taxes Collected Within the Fiscal Collections
Year Levied For Year of the Levy (a) in
Ended The Fiscal Percentage Subseguent
June 30, Year Amount of Levy Years

2002 $ 1,300,000. $ 1,300,000. 100.00%

2003 1,527,350. 1,627,350. 100.00%

2004 1,847,576. 1,847,576. 100.00%

2005 1,436,085. 1,436,085. 100.00%

2006 1,259,048. 1,259,048. 100.00%

2007 1,782,635. 1,782,635. 100.00%

2008 1,743,320. 1,743,320. 100.00%

2009 2,231,800. 2,231,800. 100.00%

2010 1,888,000. 1,888,000. 100.00%

2011 2,100,000, 2,100,000. 100.00%

Source: District records including the Certificate and Report of School
Taxes (A4F form)

School taxes are collected by the Municipal Tax Collector.
Under New Jersey State Statute, a municipality is required to
remit to the school district the entire property tax balance,

in the amount voted upon or certified prior to the end of

the school year.
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DEBT CAPACITY

N/A




DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC
INFORMATION




EXHIBIT J-14

CUMBERLAND COUNTY BOARD OF VOCATIONAL EDUCATION

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Per Capita
County Personal Personal  Unemployment
Year Population (a) income (b) Income (¢) Rate (d)
2001 146,903 $ 3,606,027,941. $ 24,547 7.50%
2002 148,012 3,803,612,376. 25,688. 8.50%
2003 149,417 3,888,129,174. 26,022 8.60%
2004 151,020 4,111,368,480. 27,224 6.70%
2006 153,252 4,313,890,548. 28,149. 6.20%
2006 154,823 4,454, 166,382. 28,834 6.20%
2007 165,544 4,603,946,856. 29,599. 8.50%
2008 156,830 4,974,804,430. 31,721, 8.00%
2009 157,745 5,028,437,365. 31,877. 12.70%
2010 156,898 N/A N/A 13.30%
Source:
a Population information provided by the NJ Dept of Labor and
Workforce Development
b Personal income has been estimated based upon the municipal
population and per capita personal income presented
c Per capita personal income by municipality estimated based upon
the 2000 Census published by the US Bureau of Economic Analysis
d Unemployment data provided by the NJ Dept. of Labor and

Worldforce Developtent
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EXHIBIT J-19

CUMBERLAND COUNTY BOARD OF VOCATIONAL EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF REQUIRED MAINTENANCE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

UNDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES - REQUIRED
MAINTENANCE FOR SCHOOL FACILITIES
11-000-261-xxx

*School Facilities

Project #(s) School Total
2002 N/A N/A
2003 $73,766. $73,766.
2004 89,804, 89,804.
2005 77,149, 77,149,
2006 182,019. 182,019.
2007 195,115. 165,115.
2008 253,981. 253,981,
2009 288,243, 288,243.
2010 303,393. 303,393.
2011 183,934. 183,934.

Total School Facilities $ 1,647,404, $ 1,647 404.

* School facilities as defined under EFCFA.
(N.J.A.C. BA:26-1.2 and N.J.A.C. 6A26A-1.3)

Source: District records
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EXHIBIT J-20

CUMBERLAND COUNTY BOARD OF VOCATIONAL EDUCATION
INSURANGE SCHEDULE

JUNE 30, 2011
UNAUDITED

School Package Policy - NJSBAIG
Property-Blanket Building & Contents
Comprehensive General Liability
Comprehensive Automobile Liability
Blanket Extra Expense
Blanket Valuable Papers & Records

Computers and Scheduled Equipment
Data Processing Equipment

Boiler and Machinery
Property Damage

Employee Benefit Liability
Errors & Omissions
Errors & Omissions Policy Coverage A
Errors & Omissions Policy Coverage B
Public Officials Bond
Walter Pudelko, Treasurer
Gene Mercoli, Business Administrator
Public Employee Dishonesty
Forgery & Alferation
Money & Securifies
Counterfeit
Computer Fraud
Workers Compensation - NJSBAIG
Ficod

Environmental Impairment Liability

Student Accident
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Coverage Deductible
$300,000,000. $ 5,000.
11,000,000.
11,000,000. 1,000.
50,000,000. 5,000.
10,000,000 5,000.
1,050,000. 1,000.
100,000,000. 5.000.
11,000,000. 1,000.
11,000,000. 5,000.
100,000. 5,000.
195,000. 1,000.
175,000. 1,000.
100,000. 500.
100,000. 500.
100,000. 500.
100,000. 500.
100,000 500.
2,000,000.
500,000. 1,000.
1,000,000. 10,000.
1,000,000.
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dChiCUE SUCCESS,

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education

Cumberiand County Board of Vocational Education School District
County of Cumberland, New Jersey

We have audited the financial statements of the Board of Education of the Cumberiand County Board of
Vocational Education School District in the County of Cumberland, State of New Jersey, as of and for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, and have issued our report thereon dated November 16, 2011. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and audit requirements as prescribed by the
Division of Finance and Regulatory Compliance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey.

Internal Conirol Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Cumberland County Board of Vocational
Education’s internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for
the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Cumberland County Board of Vocational Education’s internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the etfectiveness of the
Cumberland County Board of Vocationa! Education’s internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstaternent
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of the internal contro! over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS, LLC

K-1

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Cumberland County Board of Vocational
Education’s financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and,
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards
and audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Finance and Regulatory Compliance, Department
of Fducation, State of New Jersey. However, we noted a matter that we reported to the Board of
Education of the Cumberland County Vocational Education School District in a separate report entitled,
Auditors’ Management Report on Administrative Findings — Financial, Compliance and Performance
dated November 16, 2011.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management, the
Cumberland County Board of Vocational Education, the New Jersey State Department of Education and
other federal and state awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should
not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Respectfully submitted,

Spuwe)

Samuel A. Delp, Jr.

Public School Accountant, #745
Triantos & Delp

Certified Public Accountants, LLC

November 16, 2011
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K-2
REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND
NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR 04-04

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education

Cumberland County Board of Vocational Education School District
County of Cumberland, New Jersey

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the Board of Education of the Cumberland County Board of
Vocational Education School District, in the County of Cumberland, State of New Jersey, with the types
of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-
133 Compliance Supplement and the New Jersey State Aid/Grant Compliance Supplement that are
applicable to each of its major state programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. Cumberland
County Board of Vocational Education’s major federal and state programs are identified in the summary
of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance
with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal
and state programs is the responsibility of the Cumberland County Board of Vocational Education’s
management, Cur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Cumberland County Board of Vocational
Education’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Goverrment Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; the audit requirements as prescribed
by the Division of Finance and Regulatory Compliance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey;
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations; and New
Jersey OMB’s Circular 04-04, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and
State Aid. Those standards, OMB Circular A-133 and New Jersey OMB’s Circular (4-04, require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a
major state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the
Cumberland County Board of Vocational Education’s compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our
andit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of
the Cumberland County Board of Vocational Education’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the Board of Education of the Cumberland County Board of Vocational Education School
District, in the County of Cumberland, State of New Jersey, complied, in all material respects, with the
requirements referred to above that are applicable to each of its major state programs for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2011.
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Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the Board of Education of the Cumberland County Vocational School District is
responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal and state programs. In
planning and performing our audit, we considered Cumberland County Board of Vocational Education’s
internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a
major state program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Cumberland County
Board of Vocational Education’s imternal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal or state program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or
state prograrmn will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance as for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might
be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management, the
Cumberland County Board of Vocational Education, the New Jersey State Department of Education, and
other federal and state awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should
not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Respectfully submitted,

Samuel A. Delp, Jr.

Public School Accountant, #745

Triantos & Delp

Certified Public Accountants, LLC
November 16, 2011
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Cumberland County Board of Vocational Education
Notes to the Schedules of Expenditures of Awards and Financial Assisiance
June 34, 2011

NOTE 1.GENERAL

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance include
federal and state award activity of the Board of Education, Cumberland County Board of Vocational
Eduycation. The Board of Education is defined in Note 1 to the Board’s basic financial statements. All
federal and state awards received directly from federal and state agencies, as well as federal awards and
state financial assistance passed through other government agencies is included on the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance.

NOTE 2.BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of awards and financial assistance are presented on the
budgetary basis of accounting with the exception of programs recorded in the food service fund, which
are presented using the accrual basis of accounting., These bases of accounting are described in Note 1
to the Board’s basic financial statements. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance
with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audiis of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented
in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.

NOTE _3.RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund on a GAAP basis.
Budgetary comparison statements or schedules (RST) are presented for the general fund and special
revenue fund to demonstrate finance-related legal compliance in which certain revenue is permiited by
law or grant agreement to be recognized in the audit year, whereas for GAAP reporting, revenues is not
recognized until the subsequent year or when expenditures have been made.

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified accrual basis with the
exception of the revenue recognition of the one or more deferred June state aid payments in the current
budget year, which is mandated pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:22-442. For GAAP purposes, payments ar¢
not recognized until the subsequent budget year due to the state deferral and recording of the one or
more deferred June state aid payments in the subsequent year. The special revenue fund is presented in
the accompanying schedules on the grant accounting budgetary basis which recognizes encumbrances as
expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. The special
revenue fund also recognizes the one or more deferred state aid payments in the current budget year,
consistent with N.J.S.A. 18A:22-4.2.

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is $42,168. for the general
fund and $17,455. for the special revenue fund. See Note 7 (the Notes to Required Supplementary
Information) for a reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the modified accrual basis of accounting for
the general and special revenue funds. Awards and financial assistance revepues are reported in the
Board’s basic financial statements on a GAAP basis as follows:

Federal State Total
General Fund $ $3,998,257.  $3,998,257.
Special Revenue Fund 363,052. 126,405. 489,457,
Food Service Fund 15,672. 244, 15,916,

Total Financial Assis. $378,724. $4,124.906.  $4,503,630.
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Cumberland County Board of Vocational Education
Notes to the Schedules of Expenditures of Awards and Financial Assistance
Jane 30, 2011

NOTE 4.RELATICNSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the related federal
and state financial reports.

NOTE 5.0THER

Revenues and expenditures reported under the Food Distribution Program represent current year value
received and current year distributions respectively. The amount reported as TPAF Pension
Contributions represents the amount paid by the state on behalf of the District for the year ended June
30, 2011. TPAF Sccial Security Contributions represenis the amount reimbursed by the state for the
employer’s share of social security contributions for TPAF members for the year ended June 30, 2011,
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CUMBERLAND COUNTY BOARD OF VOCATIONAL EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
Section I — Summary of Auditor’s Results
Financial Statements
Type of auditor’s report issued: Unqualified
Internal control over financial reporting:
1. Material weakness(es) identified? _Yes %X _No
2. Significant Deficiencies identified
that are not considered to be material
weaknesses? __Yes _x_None Reported
Noncompliance material to general purpose financial
statements noticed? _ Yes X _No
Federai Awards
Internal Control over major programs:
1. Material weakness(es) identified? _ Yes x_No
2. Significant Deficiencies identified
that are considered to be
material weaknesses? _ Yes __X_None Reported

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for

major programs? Ungualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be

reported in accordance with section .510(a) of

Circular A-1337 Yes X No

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
N/A

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and

type B programs: $300,000.

Auditee qualifed as low-risk auditee? _X Yes __No
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CUMBERLAND COUNTY BOARD OF VOCATIONAL EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
Section I — Summary of Audifor’s Resulfs
State Awards
Pollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and
Type B programs: $300.000.
Auditee qualified as low risk auditee? X _Yes _.No
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for
major programs: Ungualified
Internal Control over major programs;
i. Material weakness(es) identified? _Yes _XNo
2. Significant Deficiencies identified
that are not considered to be
material weaknesses? . Yes _X None reported

Any audit findings disclosed that are required 1o be reported
in accordance with NJ OMB Circular Letter 04-047 __Yes x No

Identification of major programs:

GMIS Number(s) Name of State Program
495-034-5120-078 Equatization Aid

Section I — Financial Statement Findings

None

Section HT — Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance
Findings and Questioned Costs

Federal Awards
None

State Awards

Finding:
None
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CUMBERLAND COUNTY BOARD OF VOCATIONAL EDUCATION
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS
AND QUESTIONED COSTS AS PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS

None
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